UNIVERSITY REVIEW COMMITTEE
Illinois State University

Friday, October 20, 2017
3 p.m., Hovey 401D
MINUTES

Members present: Michael Byrns, Sam Catanzaro, Diane Dean, Kevin Edwards, Doris Houston, Sheryl Jenkins,
Rachel Shively, Sarah Smelser

Members not present: Angela Bonnell, Joe Goodman
Others present: Bruce Stoffel (recorder)

Note: In these minutes “URC” refers to the University Review Committee at Illinois State University; “Caucus” refers to the
Faculty Caucus of the Academic Senate at Illinois State University; “ASPT” refers to appointment, salary, promotion, and tenure
policies of Illinois State University; “ASPT policies” refers to Faculty Appointment, Salary, Promotion, and Tenure Policies
effective January 1, 2017; “AFEGC” refers to the Faculty Academic Freedom, Ethics and Grievance Committee at Illinois State
University; “DFSC” refers to department faculty status committee; and “SFSC” refers to school faculty status committee.
References in the minutes to “DFSC” are intended to refer to both DFSC and SFSC.

Call to order

Chairperson Diane Dean called the meeting to order at 3:03 p.m. A quorum was present.

Approval of minutes from the October 6, 2017 meeting

Michael Byrns noted that the spelling of his name should be corrected throughout the draft minutes. Byrns then
moved approval of the minutes with that correction. Sarah Smelser seconded the motion. The motion passed on
voice vote, with six members voting aye and one member abstaining (Sheryl Jenkins).

Updates

Working group on teaching evaluations

Note: This working group is hereinafter referred to as the “2017-2018 working group on teaching evaluations” or the “2017-
2018 working group” to distinguish the group from its predecessor, the spring 2016 working group on teaching evaluations.

Smelser reported on behalf of her working group colleagues, Michael Byrns and Rachel Shively. Smelser said
working group members have reviewed the spring 2016 working group report compiled by Christopher Horvath
and Andy Rummel and agree that the report is well written and compelling. She reviewed the two tasks
addressed in the report. Task 1, Smelser said, was to consider whether the term “student reactions” to teaching
performance should continue to be used in the document or replaced with some other term. Horvath and
Rummel recommended continued use of the term “student reactions.” Task 2, Smelser said, was to consider
whether multiple approaches to evaluating teaching performance should be weighted equally by DFSCs and
SFSCs. Horvath and Rummel recommended against mandating equal weighting of teaching evaluation
methods, recommending instead that each unit be allowed to decide how it wants to evaluate teaching
performance and how it wants to value different teaching performance evaluation methods. Smelser said the
2017-2018 working group concurs with Horvath’s and Rummel’s recommendations.

Smelser then referred to Appendix 2 of the ASPT policies (starting on page 60). She said the 2017-2018
working group has noticed that self-reflection and self-evaluation are not among the teaching evaluation factors
listed in the appendix nor is there mention of faculty responses to course evaluations. Smelser read aloud a
passage from the spring 2016 working group report in which Horvath and Rummel recommended a broader



approach to evaluating teaching performance that would ideally involve consideration by DFSCs and SFSCs of
more than just student evaluations of courses taught by the faculty member during the performance evaluation
year. Smelser said the 2017-2018 working group suggests adding to the paragraph on page 61, under the
heading “Factors Used for Evaluation of Teaching,” language about taking a holistic approach to evaluating
teaching performance. Byrns explained that the working group suggests adding that wording to encourage
DFSCs and SFSCs to view a faculty member’s teaching performance in context. Smelser said it may also be
appropriate to note that external factors, such as bias, may impact student reactions to teaching performance.
She suggested mentioning biases generally rather than listing specific types as Horvath and Rummel did in their
working group report.

Kevin Edwards noted that Appendix 2 of the ASPT policies permits a unit to use course evaluations and syllabi
review as the two methods of evaluating teaching performance. In doing so, Edwards said, units can meet ASPT
requirements without considering the numerous other teaching evaluation factors listed on pages 61-62.
Edwards suggested bringing into alignment the second and third sentences of the paragraph beneath the
heading, “Factors Used for Evaluation of Teaching” (“Adequate evaluation of teaching requires consideration
of a variety of factors concerning these activities” and “Departments/schools must use two or more types of
factors to evaluation teaching performance, one of which shall be student reactions to teaching performance.”)
An alternative to doing so, he said, would be to delete the third sentence (“Departments/schools must use two or
more types of factors ...). Byrns agreed. Jenkins expressed concern that if the reference to two or more types of
factors is deleted, some faculty members may unnecessarily try to address all 15 teaching evaluation factors in
their performance evaluation documents.

Dean asked committee members if many departments are using just one other method of evaluating teaching
performance (other than course evaluations). The majority of committee members responded in the affirmative.
Jenkins said her unit uses peer evaluations of teaching. Doris Houston said she has learned from a faculty
colleague in another unit that her unit considers course evaluations when evaluating teaching performance but
nothing else. Byrns reported that his unit relies primarily on course evaluations. He said it would be better if
units considered the context of those evaluations, such as whether the faculty member is new at teaching and
how many courses the faculty member is teaching. Doris Houston agreed, adding class size as a potential
contextual factor. Smelser also agreed, stating that if a faculty member is only considering the numbers from
course evaluations, the faculty member is not thinking about how to grow as a faculty member.

Rachel Shively reported another issue raised by the 2017-2018 working group on teaching evaluation:
inconsistencies in the Likert scales in course evaluation forms used by units at the University. On some
evaluation forms, Shively said, the number 1 is considered a high rating and on some forms the number 1 is
considered a low rating. Byrns said this inconsistency might penalize some faculty members teaching General
Education courses, because students familiar with evaluation forms used in their department or school might
mark their responses without first studying the Likert scale being used in the General Education course
evaluation, which may be different. Dean said the inconsistency might also affect any university-wide study of
course evaluations, perhaps even a study conducted in connection with equity review. Shively asked if there is a
way to standardize the Likert scales. Catanzaro noted that Illinois State has a long-standing decentralized
approach to such matters, allowing each unit to establish its own evaluation policies as long as they are
consistent with university-wide policies. Jenkins cited as an example use of different course evaluation forms in
her college for courses taught by faculty members and by graduate assistants. Edwards suggested, as an
alternative to mandating standardization through ASPT policies, that benefits of standardization be
communicated to departments. Catanzaro agreed, suggesting that the Provost could talk with the deans about
the matter.

Bruce Stoffel asked 2017-2018 working group members if they have identified passages in ASPT policies other
than in Appendix 2 that may need to be altered if changes being discussed by the committee are made to
Appendix 2. Byrns responded that there are five or six brief references to evaluation of teaching performance in
the ASPT policies (referencing passages on page 18 and page 32 as examples). He added that none of those
would need to be altered.

Houston asked how any changes made to the ASPT policies regarding evaluation of teaching performance
would be incorporated into CFSC standards and DFSC guidelines. Catanzaro explained that if URC decides to



recommend to the Caucus that the ASPT policies should be so revised, the changes would be approved by the
Caucus in spring 2018 at the earliest. Those changes would take effect January 1, 2019 at the earliest. Colleges
and departments would then have fall 2018 to determine if changes to their ASPT documents would be
necessary to align with the revised ASPT policies. URC would approve any such changes to CFSC standards.
Houston added that departments and schools would also have to check alignment of their guidelines with the
revised college standards.

Dean asked members of the 2017-2018 working group if they would be willing to draft changes to ASPT
policies based on this discussion and bring the draft to the next URC meeting for a vote. Smelser said the
working group will do so.

Ad hoc equity review committee

Houston, one of two URC representatives on the ad hoc equity review committee, reported.
Note: Dean also represents URC on the ad hoc committee, while Catanzaro represents the Provost’s office on the committee.

Houston discussed references to equity review in ASPT policies over the years and changes in those references
from the 2012 version of ASPT policies to the 2017 version. She read aloud the pertinent passage from both
versions, explaining that ASPT policies now mandate that URC oversee a university-wide equity review every
five years. She added that designated portions of the equity review are to be conducted annually. Houston said
ASPT policies provide no guidance as to what factors should be considered in an equity review. She said it is
the role of the ad hoc equity review committee, whose formation had been recommended by URC, to decide
what equity review means at Illinois State and how equity review should be conducted. Catanzaro said there is
no historical precedent at the University for performing equity review to guide the ad hoc equity review
committee. He noted that the only related initiative of which he is aware is an effort about 10 years ago to adjust
faculty salaries for under-recognized merit.

Houston disseminated a table (see attached) compiled by Susan Kalter, in her capacity as chairperson of the ad
hoc equity review committee, based on discussion at the initial equity review committee meeting held on
October 10, 2017. Houston explained that policies under the purview of URC are listed on the left side of the
table and dimensions of potential inequity are column headings. She said the column headings reflect two
distinct points of view regarding dimensions that could be studied. One is compression/inversion. The other
involves demographic factors (e.g., gender, race/ethnicity). Houston explained that the red shading on the chart
denotes factors about which the University is not legally permitted to collect data. The yellow shading, she said,
denotes factors about which there is uncertainty whether the University can legally collect data. Houston
reported that URC has been asked to provide feedback regarding the table. She said the ad hoc committee will
convene again on October 24, 2017, and may discuss the table then.

Houston reported having recommended to Kalter that the ad hoc committee start its work by conducting a scan
of comparator and aspirational institutions for any work on equity review at those institutions. Houston said she
has also recommended that the ad hoc committee review literature regarding equity review. Catanzaro reported
that near the end of the first equity review committee meeting, one committee member suggested conducting
such a benchmarking analysis. Catanzaro said he has subsequently talked with Kalter about how such an
analysis might be done. He said one option being considered is establishing sub-teams of the ad hoc committee
to conduct this work, perhaps having one sub-team review IBHE comparator institutions and another sub-team
review aspirational institutions.

Dean recommended broadening the term “marital status” on the table to “family status” or adding that term,
because literature suggests that family caregiving impacts one’s work. Shively asked if the ad hoc committee
considers department affiliation a potential equity issue or a control factor. Dean responded that the ad hoc
committee has considered that issue but has not yet decided whether to study equity just within a unit or also
across units. Houston added that it is also important to consider differences across disciplines. Edwards offered
that the ad hoc committee may want to consider addressing compression and inversion separately. He said both
are important but may need to be addressed in different ways.



VI.

ASPT disciplinary articles

Dean reported. She said the Caucus has completed its review of the suspensions article and will begin
discussion of the dismissal article at its next meeting (October 25, 2017). Dean said, if the many editorial issues
raised by the Caucus thus far are set aside, she believes there are two substantive issues the Caucus will need to
address. One is whether a partial suspension should be considered a sanction, as recommended by URC, or a
suspension, as some Caucus members have suggested. She added that the Caucus may decide that partial
suspension should be considered a disciplinary action separate and distinct from sanctions and suspensions. The
second substantive issue, Dean said, is whether matters that now come before AFEGC should also be addressed
through ASPT disciplinary processes. Another issued to be addressed by the Caucus, Dean said, is whether
decisions of the Provost regarding suspension may be appealed to the President. Dean explained that URC has
recommended that the President consider appeals in dismissal cases but not in suspension cases.

Catanzaro asked Dean if the Caucus has decided whether to circulate the disciplinary articles to all faculty
members once the Caucus has revised the articles based on its discussions this fall. Dean responded that she has
not yet heard whether circulating revised articles is planned. Houston noted that the director of her unit received
the disciplinary articles currently being considered by the Caucus from the Academic Senate office and has in
turn circulated the document among faculty members in the unit. Houston added that her school director has
asked faculty to send any feedback regarding the articles to the Academic Senate chairperson. Houston
suggested that URC members might consider periodically updating their unit colleagues regarding issues being
considered by URC. Jenkins said she has been sharing information with tenure track faculty in her college.
Dean said she has offered to update her department colleagues. Smelser said her unit colleagues have not yet
asked for updates.

Study of ASPT policies regarding service assignments

Because the pre-announced meeting ending time was nigh, Dean deferred discussion of this agenda item to the
next URC meeting.

Review of University Policy 3.2.4: Salary Adjustments

Dean also deferred discussion of this agenda item to the next URC meeting.

URC review of college (ASPT) standards

Dean also deferred discussion of this agenda item to the next URC meeting.

Adjournment

Jenkins moved that the meeting adjourn. Byrns seconded the motion. The motion carried on voice vote, all

voting in the affirmative. The meeting adjourned at 4:03 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Sheryl Jenkins, Secretary

Attachments:
Table of equity review issues and factors, compiled by Susan Kalter, Chairperson, Ad Hoc Equity Review Committee, undated



1oddns
juejSISSe lenpeln

sanss|
peopiom/syuawiiedap
ulyym syuawugisse

4O uonNqLISIQ

sassaooud
Q BLI2IID UOIIEN|BAD
mu:mE‘_ontm&

uonowold puodas
Suimol|o} uoileudisad
Juonme

Juonualay

M3IN3J AINUDY
-150d |aA3] Joluasg

uonowoud puodas
u_o JuaWansIydy

uonjowoud puodas
01 Joud uoneudisal
Juonune
Juonualay

MIIAI
ainuai-1sod [aA3|-pIN

|eluap
ainuaj/uonowoud

151 R
2/nua} JO JUsaWaA3IyIy

2inua}

03 Jouid uoneusisal
Juoniie Aieyunjon
Juonualay

juswiuioddeas-uon

uawiujoddy

shauow yoieasal
Jaylo/Aiejes Jawwing

UOISJIaAU|
Juoissaidwo)

28y

uonel|yje
Aseyjiw-uon
JAen

uoidi|ay

Alejes

smels | uonejualo jo sniels

[ele

|lenxas | Aauno) | Aujigesig

Aldiuyya/aoey

13puan




23ejueApesip e e sjuelsisse aiam oym Aynoey uielad Suipind sasealdul Aiejes JeaA-piw pue sjuawaloul [euoijowold o0} sadueyd jo Suiwi]
$9|0J DAIIRJISIUIWPE JBYJ0 pUeR 10123J1p/i1eyd 10} salepipued |eutajul jo jood Ayyjeay e jo uoijeald Suuapuiy 1o 8uidjay ale sassatold | 4Sy 1aYylaym

10308} 3qIssod e Se SINWWOD | SV 4O SI1eyd ayy o ANsIanlp Jaylo/iapuad/aoey

puiw ur daay o1 Juem Aew io "pulj 01 paau Aew " pulj Aew am ssuly |
¢9]2A2 Buneadau 1eaA-g 3y ul pajnpayds aq uoiliod ysea pjnoys NIHM
31 J0}IUOW 0} ISO0YD M }I UOISIDAUI/UOISS1dWOD 10} |BI131UD BJe 1N ‘SmOoJ 150w Jo adods 3yl Ulyiim Jou aue sioleledwod |euiaIx]

¢99A2 ajgeieadal JeaA-g By} J9A0 SUNJ BIEP BY] JO SWOS

10} 15B3| 1B ‘J0J |043U0D 0 10U | NYM M S3UlYyl 9y} JO U0 SIY3 S14Q ésieah ,Aip, Buunp Alanonpoud aoiasas/Alaionpoud Bulyoeal/Alaionpoad Ajiejoyas
SuOI1eI1UAIa/IP 104 uonijeue|dxa se awiy 1aao Ayananpoud adiasas/Auaianpoad Suiyoeay/Ananonpoud Ajiejoyas

suolnguisip 1ayio Jo Asejes uj saiaijod |e30|

{301A49s ulwpe Jo siead g uaye Auejes aseq 1day oym ulwipe 1aylo/ueap/1030alip/i1eyd Jawio)

‘uonelyje |eauawliedap

(01 s8uojaq Jaqwaw Aynaey Jeinaijed e auydidsSIpgns 1eYym) apod d(d

‘Ajisianiun 1e swny

Hues u awi

19A0QE S2X0( 210W 10 2U0 U] 10} [0JJU0I 0} pa2u ABW oM SWY|
Apnis ued pue 0} Juem am Jaylaym apidap o} pasu am leyl Alinba jo sadAj ay3 aue anoqe suwnjod ayL

Apnis ued pue 03 JUBM M J3YIBYM 3PIIAP 0} PIBU M 1ey) UoIDIPSLING | dSY JO SeaJe au) aie IA0CE SMOJ 3y |

pa1edaid3de
|essiwsip/uoisuadsns
/suoljoues

peoj| dIAI3S

peo| 8sino)

2wy asea|ay

uoddns ainp,,

o



